WHITE’S HISTORY, GAZETTEER AND DIRECTORY OF STAFFORDSHIRE, 1851

DILHORNE, or DILHORN, is a small but pleasant village, 2½ miles W.N.W. of Cheadle, and 4 miles E. by N. of Longton, comprising within its parish the townships of Dilhorne and Forsbrook, which support their poor conjointly.  The former has 736, and the latter 143 souls, and they contain together about 3550 acres of land.  Dilhorne Hall, the handsome seat of Edward Butler, Esq., the lord of the manor, stands near the centre of the village, in a romantic dell, and was rebuilt in the ancient style, of brick and stone, about 20 years ago.  In the early part of the present century is was the seat of the late John Holiday, Esq., who considerably improved the estate, and planted on it 113,000 mixed timber trees, for which he obtained a gold medal from the Society of Arts.  Lady Pilkington, T. H. Parker, Esq., Bamford and Co., and a few smaller owners, have estates here.  In the parish are several coal mines.  The CHURCH is a large and ancient edifice, dedicated to All Saints; but the nave and aisles were rebuilt in 1819, at the cost of about £1000.  The living is a vicarage, valued in K. B. at £8.13s. 1½d., and now at £210, in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Lichfield, and incumbency of the Rev. C.T. Dawes, M.A.  The Parsonage-house is about to be rebuilt.  The patrons are appropriators of the great tithes, which are leased to Mr. Pott. of Chester.  The vicar’s tithes are commuted for £70 a year.  There is a chapel of Ease at Forsbrook, and a Methodist chapel at Godlybrook.  Near the church is the Free Grammar School, given by one of the vicars, and endowed by one of the Earls of Huntingdon, in the reign of Henry VIII., with 48A. 16P. of land, at Dilhorne; 56A 3R.21P. at Caverswall; and 21 acres at Killamarsh, in Derbyshire.  This property is now let for £160 per annum, for which the master and usher were required to teach English, writing, arithmetic, &c., to all the children of the parish, but the school is now in Chancery, and the Marquis of Hastings is the trustee.  The poor have £8. 15s, yearly, arising from eight small benefactions.  Lady Buller supports a girls’ school here.

BLYTHE MARSH, a village in Forsbrook liberty, near the river Blythe, and BLYTHE BRIDGE STATION, on the North Staffordshire Railway, 3½ miles S.W. of Cheadle, is inhabited partly by earthenware hawkers, and has a Methodist chapel , and a free school.  The latter was founded by Wm. Amory, in 1728, and endowed with 7A.2B.10P. of land, called Pool street Meadows, and now let for £22 a year, for which the master teaches the poor children of Forsbrook, Blythe-Marsh, Blythe-Bridge, and Stonehouse.

FORSBROOK is a large village, near Blythe Bridge Station, 3 miles W.S.W of Cheadle.  It has many good houses, occupied by farmer, publicans, and tradesmen, and many cottages, occupied by coal carters and labourers.  A Chapel of Ease (St.Peter,) has lately been erected here by subscription and grants.  The living is a perpetual curacy, with an endowment of £50 a year, in the patronage of the Bishop of Lichfield, and incumbency of the Rev. A.F. Boucher, of Dilhorne.  This part of the parish is now a chapelry district.

DILHORNE

Marked 1 are at Bank top; 2 Newclose field; and 3 at Whitehurst

The Post-office is at Forsbrook.

Bagnall James, tailor

2 Bamford & Co., coal masters

2 Bamford James, coal master

Bamford Mrs. Hannah, Summer hill

Boucher rev. Alfred F., A.M., curate of Dilhorne, and incumbent of Forsbrook

Bradbury Sarah, schoolmistress

Buller Edw,. Esq., Dilhorne Hall

Buller Morton Edward, Esq., ditto

Chell Jph., maltster; and Rev., John

Dawes Rev. Chas. Thos., M.A., vicar

Eddowes Wm., butcher, &c

Holmes Thos., coal master, Elms

Hulme John, schoolmaster

Jackson Silas, miller & shopkeeper

1 James John, colliery agent

Inskip Daniel, wheelwright

Loton Jno., smith & victualler, Holly Bush

2 Loton Thomas, blacksmith

Mosley Sarah, grocer and draper

Rigby Mary, victualler, Colliers’ Arms

Salt Jph., shopr & victualler, Royal Oak

Shephard Rev. Hy. Jas., curate of Forsbrook

Thorley Mrs Elizabeth

Boot and Shoemkrs

Foden Thomas

Wood John

Whalley Jonathan

Beerhouses

James Edwin

James George

Slater Henry

Farmers

Bowers Vernon

Corbitchley Jph.

Carnwell Eliz.

3 Hill John

Lockett Samuel

Salt Thomas

1 Shufflebotham

Dnl. & Isabella

3 Shufflebotham J.

Thorley Thomas

2 Titley John

3 Whitehurst Jno.

Williamson John

Wright Joseph, & wheelwright

FORSBROOK

Marked 1 are at Blythe Marsh, and 2 at Cash Heath

POST-OFFICE at Wm. Gerrard’s.  Letters desp. 8 evening, via Stone
Abberley Rupert, shoemaker & shopkeeper
Alcock Thomas, butcher

Bagnall Philip, beerhouse

1 Beardmore Wm., blacksmith

Boulton Hugh, tailor & shopkeeper

Boulton Daniel, tailor

Broster Richard, corn miller

Bridgett John, stonemason

Burton Wm., shoemaker

1 Curtis Rev. John

Cope. W. shopkeeper
1 Dunn Job, tailor

Gerrard Wm., shopkeeper., Post-office
Hammersley James, nail manufacturer
Heath Joseph, blacksmith

Johnson Thomas, butcher

1 Lees Wm., cork cutter

1 Spilsbury John, schoolmaster. & shopkeeper
Spooner John, beerhouse & bricklayer.

1 Tabbernor Stephen, butcher

Walters Adam, auctioneer

Whilock John, stone mason

Inns and Taverns

1 Black Cock, Samuel Betts

Bull’s Head, Richard Phillips

Butcher’s Arms, Sampson Wright, (and butcher)

1 Duke of Wellington, Wm. Phillips

Roe Buck, John Stanton (& butcher)

1 Travellers’ Inn, Eliz. James

Farmers
Abberley George

1 Bagnall Simpsn.

Bamford Samuel

1 Bradbury Eliz.

2 Bloor James

Bridgett Samuel

1 Broster Richard

2 Eddowes Elijah

Foden Joseph

Gerrard Jph. (& maltster)

Harris Robert

Harris Samuel

Harvey Thomas

1 Heath Richard

1 Heath Samuel

1 James Wm. buch.

Martin Samuel

1 Marston Wm.

Nicklin John

1 Perry Thomas

Rushton Rupert

Smith Richard

Snape Thomas

Tidswell Joseph

Turner Rupert (& butcher)

Warrington Ths.

Whilock Ralph (& maltster)

Wheelwrights

Foden Edward

Inskip Daniel

1 Mills Wm.

Whilock Joseph

RAILWAY

Trains from Blyth Bridge Station 5 times a day.

